
    
    
 

Town of Ashland 
Planning Commission  

Work Session 
Minutes 

March 13, 2013 – 6:30 p.m. 
 
The Planning Commission of the Town of Ashland, Virginia, held a work session on 
Wednesday, March 13, 2013, in the Town of Ashland Council Chambers located at 101 
Thompson Street, Ashland, Virginia.   
 

Present:   Alan Abbott , Chairman 
  Lou Ann Jewell , Vice-Chair 

  Bob Brown  
  Felix Stevens, III 
  Bob Flanagan  

 
Absent: None. 

 
Others Present: Nora Amos,  

Director of Planning and Community Development 
Bryant Phillips, Senior Planner 
Dr. Spagna, Council Liaison 
Nancy Quesenberry, Administrative Assistant 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mr. Abbott opened the Planning Commission work session at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the items for the Planning Commission meeting scheduled 
for 7:00 p.m. 
 
There was discussion regarding amending the Planning Commission Bylaws to bring the 
number of terms a Planning Commission member may serve on the Planning Commission in 
line with the Town Code. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no other items, the work session was adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 

T o w n   o f   A s h l a n d 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

2 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Town of Ashland 
Planning Commission 

Minutes 
March 13, 2013 –7:00 p.m. 

 
A regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Town of Ashland, Virginia, was held on 
Wednesday, March 13, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. in the Town of Ashland Council Chambers, located at 
101 Thompson Street, Ashland, Virginia.   

 
Present:    Alan Abbott , Chairman 
  Lou Ann Jewell , Vice-Chair 
  Bob Brown 

Bob Flanagan 
Felix Stevens, III 
 

Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Nora Amos,  

Director of Planning and Community Development 
Bryant Phillips, Senior Planner 
Dr. Spagna, Council Liaison 
Andrea Erard, Town Attorney 
Nancy Quesenberry, Administrative Assistant 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mr. Abbott called the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Ms. Jewell  Here 
Mr. Flanagan  Here  
Mr. Brown  Here 
Mr. Stevens  Here 
Mr. Abbott  Here 
 
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: 
 
Mr. Abbott stated that a quorum was present. 
 
 
 

T o w n   o f   A s h l a n d 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

3 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Mr. Abbott asked if there were any amendments to be made to the agenda.  
 
There being none, it was the consensus of the Planning Commission to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
 
CITIZEN INPUT: 
 
Mr. Abbott opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There being none, Mr. Abbott closed that portion of the meeting. 
 
PRESENTATION OF MINUTES: 
 

A. Approval of January 9, 2013, Planning Commission work session and regular 
meeting minutes. 

 
Mr. Brown stated that he would like the minutes to be amended to reflect his question to the 
presenter Mr. Garman, at the January 9, 2013, meeting asking “What did it mean for the 
rezoning to be changed from 1-4 in the residential zoning next to the Town of Ashland.” 
 
There was discussion regarding the formatting and content of the minutes.  
 
Ms. Amos stated that the minutes could be amended to reflect Mr. Brown’s request.  
 
Ms. Jewell stated that she saw a presentation relating to the Hanover County suburban area and 
that it was her opinion that it was much larger than what the Planning Commission originally 
saw.  
 
Ms. Amos stated that she could try to get a copy of that map for the Planning Commission. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Jewell to approve the January 9, 2013, minutes as amended. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Stevens  Aye 
Ms. Jewell  Aye 
Mr. Flanagan  Aye  
Mr. Brown  Aye 
Mr. Abbott  Aye 
 
With all Ayes, the motion passed. 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

None.  

 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

4 
 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. REZ13-0107 – Sumpter T. Priddy, Jr. Rezoning – Bryant Phillips 
 
Mr. Phillips reviewed the rezoning request as presented in the Planning Commission 
packet. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that this case was deferred from the February 13, 2013, Planning 
Commission meeting to allow the Applicant time to address some of the comments and 
concerns that were raised by the Planning Commission and by some of the citizens that 
spoke during that public hearing. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that for the most part everyone was in support of the renovation of the 
existing building to allow for some sort of commercial use, ie; deli, or convenience; 
store, however, there were concerns regarding how the property could be used or 
developed if it were to be rezoned to B-1.  Some of the specific concerns raised by the 
Planning Commission and citizens were as follows: 
 

 What uses would be permitted on the property? 
 How the property would be developed by a future owner. 
 Whether the property could be developed as a strip-commercial shopping center. 
 Lighting and glare from any site lighting. 
 Traffic increase and pedestrian safety. 

 
Proffers submitted by the Applicant state that the only uses that would be permitted are 
as follows: 
 

 Any use permitted in a R-2 District, 
 Personal service uses (2,500 square feet). 
 Retail Stores, with no gas  pumps (2,500 square feet). 
 Parks and playgrounds, with a Conditional Use Permit. 
 Daycare centers or day nurseries. 
 Offices (2,500 square feet). 
 Farmer’s markets, with a Conditional Use Permit. 
 Restaurants, excluding drive-ins (2,5000 square feet). 
 Museums and art galleries, with a Conditional Use Permit. 
 Philanthropic and charitable institutions. 

 
Mr. Phillips stated that the proffers that have been submitted by the Applicant should 
address many of the concerns that were raised. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that staff recommends deferral of this request until the April 10, 2013, 
Planning Commission meeting to allow staff time to work through the vacation of the 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

5 
 

right-of-way for an adjacent property owner; which is a change from the 
recommendation that was placed in the Planning Commission staff report. 
 
Mr. Abbott opened the public hearing and asked if there was anyone that would like to 
come forward to speak for or against the application being discussed. 
 
Ms. Janie Bowles – Rockville, Virginia resident; owner of properties adjacent to the 
property being requested to be rezoned (GPIN: 7870-33-5704, and 4564). 
 
Ms. Bowles expressed concern of Mill Street and John Street as they are both adjacent to 
her property and are being discussed to be vacated. 
 
Ms. Bowles stated that according to the Town’s Policy she was told that she would have 
to have the property surveyed and appraised and then would be required to pay the Town 
for the portion that she desired.   
 
Ms. Bowles stated that it was her understanding that she was able to proceed on the fact 
that this was a subdivision and that when these streets were vacated  she would be 
entitled to the property up to the center line of John Street and Mill Street. 
 
Ms. Bowles stated that she finally received a call from the Town Attorney this evening 
stating that she would do research regarding Ms. Bowles’ situation, and was told that 
this case would be deferred at the meeting this evening. 
 
Ms. Bowles stated that it was her desire to have this case deferred by the Planning 
Commission until the property line issues are resolved; it was her concern that if the 
Planning Commission were to approve this case, then a portion of her property could be 
rezoned in the process, and would be a very difficult thing for her to undo. 
 
Ms. Bowles added that it was her opinion that the Planning Commission is proceeding 
under an improper code ordinance under 15.2-2272 . 
 
Ms. Amos stated that the Code that Ms. Bowles referenced was of the State Code and 
the Planning Commission would not take action on that Code; it was the duty of the 
Town Council to take that action. 
 
Ms. Jewell asked if the vacation of Rights-of-Ways for Mr. Priddy’s property was 
simply acquired or if he was waiting for the same information. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that in Mr. Priddy’s case, his payment to the Town will be the 
dedication of the 10 plus acres as a Town park. 
 
Ms. Pat Morris – 510 Henry Clay Road, Ashland, Virginia. 
 
Ms. Morris stated that she spoke at the last meeting and stated that she was unclear how 
the proffers that were being offered addressed the two (2) concerns that she had, which 
included the lighting shining into her windows and keeping her awake at night.  Also 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

6 
 

there was no mention of the safety concerns for pedestrian crossing with perhaps a 
flashing crossing light. 
 
Mr. Flanagan asked staff if the Lighting Ordinance would cover these issues. 
 
Ms. Amos confirmed that it would. 
 
Mr. James Peterson – 103 Chapman Street, Ashland, Virginia. 
 
Mr. Peterson expressed concern about pedestrian crossing safety and the speed limit of 
35 miles per hour at that location. 
 
Mr. Peterson stated that with regards to the land that Mr. Priddy was graciously donating 
to the Town for a park, the land was his opinion no more than a swamp, and it was also 
his opinion that it would not be a destination point. 
 
Ms. Paige Christy – 619 Chapman Street, Ashland, Virginia. 
 
Ms. Christy stated that she wanted to reiterate that there are several types of businesses 
the property could have on it; however, since it is in a medical park type area it was her 
opinion that if it were a professional office business type of building instead of a store 
type area, the lighting would not be as bright and would keep within the type of 
businesses currently surrounding that property.   
 
Ms. Christy stated that it was her opinion that the Applicant could donate the entire area 
to the Town for a park.  
 
Tayloe Moore – 500 Thompson Street, (the corner of Thompson Street and Chapman 
Street). 
  
Ms. Moore spoke in opposition of the rezoning stating that her concerns were the same 
as they were last month, which included the traffic on the busy Thompson Street and 
pedestrians. With regards to the lighting, what would the hours of operation be, signage 
size and brightness, whether or not the proffers equate to permanent limitation or 
restriction to any successive owner or if the future owner would be allowed to remove 
the current structure and redevelop the 3.5 acres as they see fit. 
 
Ms. Moore requested that the Planning Commission remember that the area being 
discussed was a residential area and a gateway into Ashland. 
 
Mr. Abbott stated that the Planning Commission would like to continue the public 
hearing until the April 10, 2013, Planning Commission meeting, but would bring it back 
to the Planning Commission for further discussion. 
 
Mr. Flanagan asked staff for clarification whether the Ordinance would address the 
height, brightness and direction of the lighting.  Mr. Flanagan also asked if he were to 
purchase the area that was being discussed, could he could tear down the existing 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

7 
 

building and do whatever he would like to do as long as it was within the proffers, 
because they go with the land, but the building does not get proffered. 
 
Staff confirmed. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that the Lighting Ordinance that the Planning Commission recently 
amended states that on commercial property the lighting pole height limit is 20 feet, and 
all light must be downward directed and it must have a full cut-off fixtures as well as 
being shut-down to security level lighting after hours of operation.   
 
Ms. Amos stated that there was a discussion of hours of operation with Mr. Priddy who 
was not comfortable in proffering that as well as some of the uses that were suggested.   
 
Ms. Amos reminded the Planning Commission that proffers were voluntary. 
 
Mr. Brown asked how many uses could be put on that site. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that staff has not determined how many uses could go on this 
property. 
 
Ms. Jewell stated that one area that has not been addressed is the possibility of a strip 
shopping center on this property. 
 
Ms. Jewell asked if the Parks and Recreation-Committee discussed the 11 acres of land 
being donated for a park. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that the Parks and Recreation-Committee reviewed this at their 
February meeting and will meet again on March 21, 2013, to discuss it further. 
 
Ms. Jewell stated that with regards to the safety and the speed limit concerns that were 
mentioned, a posted speed limit must be addressed by the Police Department; however, 
with regards to changing the speed limit, there is a large process that would need to be 
done to get that addressed, one thing would be a speed study and what was being 
discussed this evening does not warrant a traffic study. 
 
Mr. Flanagan stated that he wanted to reiterate the concerns that he had last month 
regarding the traffic and safety in this area, and not knowing what would be going on 
this parcel. 
 
Mr. Abbott asked at what point a structure would be considered a strip mall. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that it would be based on square footage and it was her opinion that 
someone could build a strip mall on the property being discussed. 
 
Mr. Abbott asked if the buildings could be built side by side in the B-1 Zoning District. 
 
Ms. Amos confirmed. 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

8 
 

 
Mr. Brown stated that he would be happy to draw out what could be built on the site. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that Mr. Phillips could provide Mr. Brown with a map. 
 
Mr. Abbott asked what would need to be done to address the speed limit concerns in that 
area. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that the Town would not have to go through the same procedure as 
Hanover County; the Town could do an internal study and request to have the speed 
limit changed internally. 
 
The public hearing was continued until April10, 2013. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Flanagan to defer action on REZ13-0107 – Sumpter T. 
Priddy, Jr. to the April 10, 2013, Planning Commission meeting. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Flanagan  Aye  
Mr. Brown  Aye 
Mr. Stevens  Aye 
Ms. Jewell  Aye 
Mr. Abbott  Aye 
 
With all Ayes, the motion passed to defer the rezoning request to the April 10, 2013, meeting. 
 

B. REZ13-0129 – Concrete Pipe & Precast, LLC – Bryant Phillips 
 
Mr. Phillips reviewed the rezoning request as presented in the Planning Commission 
packet. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the Applicant has asked that the request be deferred until the 
April 10, 2013, Planning Commission meeting.   
 
Mr. Phillips stated that staff has met with the Applicant to discuss potential proffers to 
go along with this rezoning request. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the Applicant is currently attempting to gather more information 
relating to a potential tenant or use to determine which proffers might be appropriate for 
that use or potential tenant. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that staff’s recommendation is to continue the public hearing and to 
defer action on this request until the April 10, 2013, Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Mr. Abbott opened the public hearing and asked if there was anyone that would like to 
come forward and speak for or against the request being discussed.  



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

9 
 

 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked what type of proffers staff was discussing with the Applicant. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the main areas that staff had discussed with the Applicant were 
additional landscape buffering, increasing the setbacks, limiting any free standing signs 
to monument style signs, no outdoor speakers or audio systems, and architectural 
standards so that the structures do not look industrial. 
 
Mr. Stevens expressed his strong desire that the proffers that the Applicant offers will 
secure an attractive appearance to the site since the site is on a heavily traveled area and 
that its appearance is very important to the Town of Ashland. 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Jewell to continue the public hearing and defer action on 
REZ13-0129 – Concrete Pipe & Precast, LLC until the April 10, 2013, Planning 
Commission meeting. 
 

ROLL CALL: 
 
Ms. Jewell  Aye 
Mr. Flanagan  Aye  
Mr. Brown  Aye 
Mr. Stevens  Aye 
Mr. Abbott  Aye 

 
With all Ayes, the motion passed to continue the public hearing and defer action on the rezoning 
request until the April 10, 2013, meeting. 

 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. SUB12-0921 – Sumpter T. Priddy, Sr. & Cornelia W. – Subdivision Preliminary 
Plat – Bryant Phillips 

 
Mr. Phillips stated that he did not have a presentation for this item, and that nothing has changed 
since the February Planning Commission meeting in which this subdivision request was 
discussed. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that staff recommends deferral to allow staff time to finish the issues 
surrounding the property owned by Mrs. Bowles and how she intends to move forward with the 
property. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Brown to defer SUB12-0921 – Sumpter T. Priddy, Sr. & Cornelia 
W. Subdivision Preliminary Plat until the April 10, 2013, Planning Commission meeting.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

10 
 

Mr. Brown  Aye 
Mr. Stevens  Aye 
Ms. Jewell  Aye 
Mr. Flanagan  Aye  
Mr. Abbott  Aye 
 
With all Ayes, the motion passed to defer the Subdivision Preliminary Plat request to the April 
10, 2013, meeting. 
 
REPORT OF COMMITTEES: 
 
Town Council – George Spagna 
 
Dr. Spagna stated that the recent Town Council Actions are listed in the Planning Commission 
packet. 
 
Ashland Main Street Association – Nora Amos 
 
Ms. Amos stated that Ashland Main Street Association is establishing an office in the 
McKinney Office Building to provide an office in the downtown area for the new Executive 
Director. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that during the last Town Council meeting, which was held on March 5, 2013, 
the contract to move forward with the downtown streetscape was approved to be engineered and 
designed by AMT Group, LLC. 
 
Economic Development Authority –Nora Amos 
 
Ms. Amos stated that on February 28, 2013, the Economic Development Authority (EDA) had a 
facilitated work session, which was lead by Mr. Jamison Manion, who currently works for the 
City of Richmond, Department of Economic Development, and volunteered to come in and 
work with the Town’s EDA.  This work session was a kick-off to the start of their strategic 
planning process and at their next meeting the EDA will break out into sub-committees and 
work on moving forward with their plan for the next five (5) or ten (10) years. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 

A. None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. None. 
 
UPCOMING ITEMS: 
 

A. March 20, 2013, Planning Commission Work Session, 6:00 p.m. 
B. April 10, 2013, Planning Commission Work Session, 6:30 p.m. 



Planning Commission Minutes  
March 13, 2013 

11 
 

C. April 10, 2013, Planning Commission Regularly Scheduled Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:07 p.m. 


